ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 5, 2005
9:38 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair

Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Jay Ranras

Representative Berta Gardner (via tel econference)
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Ji m El ki ns
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 127

"An Act relating to service in the peace corps and to service as
a diplomat in the United States Foreign Service as allowable
absences from the state for purposes of eligibility for
permanent fund dividends and to the period for filing an
application for a permanent fund dividend; authorizing the
Department of Revenue to issue admnistrative orders inposing
sanctions for certain msrepresentations or other actions
concerning eligibility for a permanent fund dividend and
providing for admnistrative appeal of those orders; and
providing for an effective date."”

- MOVED CSHB 127(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 121
"An Act relating to consolidating or abolishing certain service
areas in second class boroughs.™

- MOVED CSHB 121(CRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 12
"An Act relating to televisions and nonitors in notor vehicles."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 114

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 5, 2005



"An Act relating to the retaining of certain privileges of a
parent in a relinquishnment and term nation of a parent and child
rel ationship proceeding; relating to eligibility for permanent
fund dividends for certain children in the custody of the state;
relating to child in need of aid proceedings and juvenile
del i nquency proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 127

SHORT TI TLE: PFD: PEACE CORPS/ DI PLOVAT/ SANCTI ONS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 05 (H STA, FIN

03/ 03/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 03/ 05 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 03/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 121
SHORT TI TLE: SERVI CE AREAS | N SECOND CLASS BOROUGHS
SPONSCR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

02/ 02/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 02/ 05 (H CRA, STA

02/ 15/ 05 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 15/ 05 (H Heard & Held

02/ 15/ 05 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 24/ 05 (H CRA RPT CS(CRA) NT 1DP 5NR

02/ 24/ 05 (H DP: THOWAS;

02/ 24/ 05 (H NR: Cl SSNA, NEUNAN, SALMON, LEDQUX,
OLSON

02/ 24/ 05 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 24/ 05 (H Moved CSHB 121(CRA) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 24/ 05 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 12

SHORT TITLE: TVS AND MONI TORS | N MOTOR VEHI CLES
SPONSOR('s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GRUENBERG, LYNN, GARDNER, MCGUI RE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 5, 2005



01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 114

SHORT TI TLE: TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 05 (H STA, HES, JUD

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 05 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 01/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ELI ZABETH CUADRA

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a past volunteer with the Peace
Corps in support of HB 127.

SHARON BARTON, Director

Per manent Fund Di vi dend D vi si on

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding HB 127.

DON GRAY

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a past volunteer with the Peace
Corps in support of HB 127.

MARK VEENI G, Foreign Service Oficer

United States Departnent of State

Washi ngton, D.C.

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Pronoted including Foreign Service workers
in HB 127.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Chair

Road Comm ssion

Fai r banks North Star Borough
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 5, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the road comm ssion
in support of HB 121.

RENE BROKER, Attorney at Law

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on HB 121, and on behal f
of the Fairbanks North Star Borough, provided clarification
regarding differences between hone rule and second class cities
inrelation to road service areas.

M KE BLACK, Comrunity Devel opnent Section Chi ef

Central Ofice

Di vision of Comunity Advocacy

Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to a question during the hearing
on HB 121.

DAVI D VElI SER
Bost on, Massachusetts
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 12.

DEBORAH JI LLY, Acting Chief

Section of Community Heal th and Emergency Medi cal Services
D vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 12.

BONNI E GODFRED
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 12.

JANNA STEWART, Crim nal Justice Planner

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 12.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:38:41 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives Lynn, Gatto, Gardner (via
tel econference), Ranras, G uenberg, and Seaton.

HB 127- PFD: PEACE CORPS/ DI PLOVAT/ SANCTI ONS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 5, 2005



9:39:49 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 127, "An Act relating to service in the peace
corps and to service as a diplomat in the United States Foreign
Service as allowable absences from the state for purposes of
eligibility for permanent fund dividends and to the period for
filing an application for a permanent fund dividend; authorizing
the Departnment of Revenue to issue admnistrative orders
i nposing sanctions for certain msrepresentations or other
actions concerning eligibility for a permanent fund dividend and
providing for admnistrative appeal of those orders; and
providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN declared a conflict of interest. He
expl ained that his son currently works in the Foreign Service.

9:40:40 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded Representative Lynn that the part of the
bill pertaining to the Foreign Service was renoved at the
previ ous neeti ng.

9:41: 22 AM

ELI ZABETH CUADRA, Juneau, said she volunteered for the Peace
Corps after she retired at the age of 64. She said she worked
on agricultural devel opnent in Nepal. In the mdst of her two-
year service, she said, she had the rude shock of having the
Al aska legislature "basically withdraw ny Alaska citizenship."
She added, "It felt like that at least; it was a real kick in
the teeth.” She was still voting in Al aska during her Peace
Corps work, keeping up her vehicle registrations, and paying the
nortgage on her Alaska honme, and she had every intention of
returning to Al aska. She said she received the Al aska permanent
fund dividend (PFD) the first year, but then the |aw was changed
to not include the Peace Corps as an allowable absence. She
didn't receive her dividend the second year of her volunteer
wor k, nor the year after her return, she added.

9:44:19 AM
M5. CUADRA said the Peace Corps is just as valid a service to
her country as the National Guard. She listed the health and

political dangers of being a Peace Corps volunteer. "I'f you
want to give due honor to the Alaska citizens who |eave Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 5, 2005



tenporarily for Foreign Service as Peace Corps volunteers, you
should restore the permanent fund dividend to them" she
concl uded.

9:45:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he has a lot of respect for her
service and wants to see her slide show

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he supports HB 127, and he asked M.
Cuadra what she did for a living.

9:47:11 AM

M5. CUADRA said she was an engineer and a |awyer. She added
that the legal basis for mintaining the PFD lies in the
principle of one's domcile.

9:48: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he thinks HB 127 is a good bill, and he
asked how many Peace Corps volunteers are from Al aska.

MS. CUADRA said she doesn't know, but she has heard that Al aska
has had the highest nunber of volunteers per capita.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what 1is the difference regarding
domcile if a person is a mssionary.

9:50:11 AM

M5. CUADRA said it is different because Peace Corps vol unteers
are serving their country; it is an official function of the
United States governnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said Ms. Cuadra is a very distingui shed
nmenber of the Juneau Bar and he appreciates her sacrifice.

MS. CUADRA said she did not view going into the Peace Corps as a
sacrifice; it was the best decision of her life.

9:50: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that when M. Cuadra went into the
Peace Corps she had the understanding that she was entitled to

recei ve a PFD. He asked if the state had broken a contract with
her .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 5, 2005



9:51:45 AM

M5. CUADRA answered that she did not view it as a contract. A
current legislature cannot bind a future legislature, she said.
She said she isn't testifying in order to get the noney back

she is testifying to support current and future Peace Corps
vol unt eers.

9:54: 03 AM

SHARON BARTON, Director, Permanent Fund D vidend Division
Depart ment of Revenue, said she is advised by the bill's sponsor
that there are about 42 people in the Peace Corps clainmng
Al askan resi dency.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if she would send those volunteers
applications if HB 127 passes.

9:55: 06 AM
M5. BARTON said she woul d be happy to do that.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there are any technica
revisions in the law that Ms. Barton would |like to see.

M5. BARTON said she thinks the bill is clear wi thout any further
anendnent s.
9:55:51 AM
CHAIR SEATON said another PFD bill would conme before the
comittee.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if the conmmttee should consider a
time extension for Peace Corps volunteers for the current PFD
application.

9:56: 39 AM

M5. BARTON said the bill's effective date is January 1, 2006, so
there is no need for an extension unless the conmttee would
want Peace Corps volunteers to be qualified for the 2005
di vi dend.

9:57:26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 5, 2005



DON GRAY, Fairbanks, said he was a Peace Corps volunteer in the
1960s in India, and he wll not benefit by HB 127, but he
supports it. He said there was a question from an earlier
neeting regarding the status of students in the University of
Al aska Peace Corps masters international program He reported
that the graduate school six-credit academ c year is considered
active status; it is not considered full-tine status.

9:59: 28 AM

VR. GRAY said there are nmany young Alaskans who are
contenplating the Peace Corps but are burdened financially. He
said leaving the state for two years should not be considered a
break in residency for national service volunteers.

10: 01: 40 AM

MARK VNI G Foreign Service Oficer, United States Departnent of
State, said he is assigned to Washington D.C., and he would |ike
the conmmttee to replace foreign service officers as an

exenption in HB 127. He said the Senate version still has the
provision in its bill. He said that he was a television
reporter in Anchorage from 1993-94, and he was accepted into the
Foreign Service in 1994. He said he has been living in

Et hiopia, Mauritius Island, and Ronmani a. M. Wneg said he has
spent every hone |eave in Anchorage, he has voted as an Al askan
for every major election, and he intends to return to Al aska
when his Foreign Service career is conpleted. He expressed that
he is a second-class citizen because he does not get the PFD.

10: 04: 34 AM

MR. WNEG noted there are only nine Foreign Service enployees
that claim Alaska as their residence, so "it can't be about
noney." He said no one speaks on behalf of [the Foreign Service
menber s] . He gave exanples of his work in getting an Anerican
citizen out of jail, helping Anerican conpani es invest overseas,
and contributing to developing "a positive opinion of the US
anong foreign publics.” M. Wneg thinks this issue is about
recognition. He feels that Foreign Service enployees nmake a
difference while serving their country in difficult and often
dangerous circunstances: "places with bad food, scary highways,
and harsh climtes." He added that because of the threat of
terrorism "living overseas, these days, carries its own risks."

10: 07: 26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 5, 2005



MR WNEG concluded that he 1is looking for respect and
recognition.

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

10: 07: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 127, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

10: 08: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS objected in order to address M. Wneg's
coment s. He said that Foreign Service was a tough issue, and
he told of his uncle doing charity service outside Al aska, which
was al so not an allowable absence for a PFD. He said there are
many extenuating circunstances, but the conmttee has a chance
of taking care of Peace Corps workers today, and maybe others
can be taken care of in different |egislation.

10:10: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said the Foreign Service is part of the
governnment, unlike a private contractor.

10:11: 16 AM

CHAIR SEATON said that the Foreign Service is a voluntary job
with health benefits, and although it is great service to the
country, the question the commttee is deciding is what would be
an al |l owabl e absence for the PFD program

10:11: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said the same thing could be said for the
mlitary.

CHAIR SEATON noted no further objections; therefore, CSHB
127(STA) was reported from the House State Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.

HB 121- SERVI CE AREAS I N SECOND CLASS BOROUGHS

10:12:45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 5, 2005



CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 121, "An Act relating to consolidating or abolishing
certain service areas in second class boroughs."

CHAIR SEATON announced that the committee substitute (CS),
Ver sion 24-LS0396\Y, was before the commttee.

CHAIR SEATON noted that Dan Bockhurst had submtted witten
testi nony.

10: 14: 39 AM

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Chair, Road Conm ssion, Fairbanks North Star
Borough, testified in support of HB 121, and commented that the

bill would protect road service areas that function properly.
She referred to the testinony of M. Bockhurst [on 3/1/05]
suggesting that hone rule boroughs be included. She said she

doesn't have any strong objections to that suggestion; however,
she would like to hear the [Fairbanks North Star] Borough's
opinion on that from Rene Broker. Referring again to the prior
testinmony of M. Bockhurst, she said, "I feel like his coment
was alnost contradictory when he said that he wanted the
| egislature to include hone rule in this provision, because they
can, at any tinme, change how they operate, just by charter. So,
that is their local control and their way to nake decisions.”

10: 15: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he didn't want to take action on
the bill before he has contacted the Minicipality of Anchorage
for its input. He asked if anyone in the room or online had
made that contact already.

The commttee took an at-ease from to 10:16:35 AM to 10: 16: 45
AM

M5. MOSS explained, "This is for second class boroughs, and
Anchorage is a unified nmunicipality.”

10:17: 21 AM

RENE BROKER, Attorney at Law, Fairbanks North Star Borough, in
response to a request from Chair Seaton, said she thinks that
M. Bockhur st "m ssed t he point," because hone rul e
municipalities have a lot of other powers and abilities - to
address the issues caused by road service areas that aren't

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 5, 2005



functioning properly - that second class boroughs do not have.
The bill, she said, is not an effort to sonmehow vault second
cl ass boroughs ahead of home rule boroughs; it's just an attenpt
to give the second class boroughs an ability to deal wth
probl ens they have that home rul e boroughs do not have.

10: 18: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated hi s under st andi ng t hat
Anchorage, and other honme rule boroughs "could do this now if
t hey w shed. ™

10:19: 20 AM

M5. MOSS answered that's correct.

10:19: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the Departnment of Commerce
woul d i ke to correct M. Bockhurst's testinony.

10: 20: 16 AM

M KE BLACK, Community Devel opnment Section Chief, Central Ofice,
Division of Community  Advocacy, Depar t ment of Commer ce,
Community, & Econom c Developnent, said he would need to do
further research before he would say the departnent would
correct M. Bockhurst's testinony at this point.

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

10: 21: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told M. Black that he thinks it's
inportant that "no departnent have ... |l egally incorrect
testinmony on a record on a piece of legislation.™ He said he

thinks M. Bockhurst is incorrect and he hates to see a legally
i ncorrect statenent.

10: 22: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to the first page of a
t wo- page handout [in the commttee packet] that is a table which
shows the "powers and duties of organized boroughs.” He noted
that, [in decisions relating to] roads and trails, the table
shows that unified nunicipality and honme rule borough
determ nations nmay be exercised by ordinance on a nonareaw de

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 5, 2005



basis and nmay be exercised on a service area basis with voter
approval . Representative Gatto said, "It just seens to ne they
can already do what we're asking them to be able to do in the
bill."

10: 23: 16 AM

CHAI R SEATON expl ai ned the problemis once the road service area
is established by voter approval in an area, there is not really
a mechanism to "dissolve that by the borough.”™ The bill would
provi de that mechani sm

10: 24: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS rem nded the commttee that [HB 121] is
critical for Fairbanks, because sone of the road service areas
have slipped into disservice, which puts people at risk.

10: 25: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON, followng up on Representative Gatto's previous
comment, clarified that the "voter approval” neans the vote of
the road service area board nenbers, not the general public.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he does not have a problem with the
bill.

10: 26: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, via tel econference, said she is ready to
"nmove the question” and would vote if she coul d.

10: 26: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noved to report CSHB 121(CRA), Version 24-
LS0396\Y, out of comrmittee with individual recomendations and
the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
121(CRA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

10: 28: 34 AM

HB 12-TVS AND MONI TORS I N MOTOR VEH CLES

10: 28: 40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 5, 2005



CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 12, "An Act relating to televisions and nonitors in
not or vehicles."

10: 29:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG presented HB 12 as sponsor, and he said
the bill increases the penalties for driving a notor vehicle
while watching a television or video nonitor or any such screen
that is in the vehicle and produces entertainnment or has
busi ness applications. He said the legislation also nmakes it a
crimnal offense to install such a device that is capable of
being viewed by the driver while the vehicle 1is noving.
Exceptions include global positioning systens and map displays.
It is now a traffic violation, he said. Under HB 12, violating
this law will be a class A misdeneanor if the driver is not
involved in an accident where sonmeone is injured, a Cass C
felony if the driver has an accident that injures soneone, a
Class B felony if the driver has an accident where a person
suffers a serious injury, and a Class A felony if the driver has
an accident causing a death. A person who installs the device
can be fined a m nimum of $2,500, he told the committee.

10: 31: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said HB 12 woul d make Al aska the second
state to have such a law. He said the legislation is the result
of an accident that killed two close friends of his. Wtching a
video is different fromtalking to soneone in the car or using a
cell phone, he said, because a person cannot keep his or her
eyes on the road while engaged in this activity.

10: 34: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked about passengers using video caneras
with nonitors.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this applies to the driver of the
not or vehi cl e.

10: 36: 08 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked himto clarify.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he doesn't think it would be
consi dered a vi deo signal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 5, 2005



10: 36: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked if the bill addresses noving
vehi cl es only.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that on page 1, line 6, the
| anguage is "drive".

10: 37: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS nentioned a past enployee of his who had a
car accident because of a radio that was |oud, which he said
could have | essened her visual acuity. There are other sensory
di stracti ons, he said.

10: 39: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that would possibly be considered
negligent or reckless driving. He said he offered the
| egi sl ati on because watching a novie is so much nore dangerous
than a loud radio; it's a violation of |aw "per se." He added
that the penalties he has offered could be up for discussion.

10:41:15 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that in a previous bill a civil fine was
reduced from $5,000 to $3,000 because the |ower anpbunt was
easier to inpose.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG recol |l ected t hat t hat was an
adm nistrative civil penalty that was | ow enough that a right to
a jury trial was not open to a defendant. This is in crimnal
statute, he said, and anyone would have a right to a jury trial.

10: 42: 58 AM

CHAI R SEATON sai d cell phones now have vi deo screens.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that cell phones with video
screens are not exenpt; the law won't depend on the size of a
screen.

10: 44: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if it is only applicable if the driver is
watching the screen, not just talking on a phone that has a
vi deo screen on it.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 5, 2005



10:46: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the key word on page 1, line 6, is

"wat chi ng". "If you are watching it, then you're guilty," he
sai d. "We want the people to have their vision uninpaired,"” he
added.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated her wunderstanding that it's not
that the driver's vision is inpaired, but the driver's attention
is distracted "in such a way that they are not attending to the
visual requirements of operating a noving vehicle."

10:47:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is correct.

CHAIR SEATON said the commttee mght want to clarify |anguage
which now mght disallow a videophone from being in a car
because it is "capable" of being seen.

10:49:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested inserting: "that is visible from
the driving position,”™ so a person could have a cell phone in a
hol ster. Car radios now have "w cked displays that w ggle and
tilt, and if you look at it to tune it, you mght be conmmtting
a violation, but you don't have to look at it," he added.

10: 50: 43 AM

CHAI R SEATON opened public testinony.

DAVI D WEI SER said he is the eldest son of Bob and Donna Wi ser,
who were killed in a head-on collision on the Seward H ghway in
2002. He said the conmttee is aware of the charges of second-
degree nurder of the other driver, alleging that he was watching
a DVD novie, but he was acquitted of all charges. He said the
i ncident brought national attention to the issue of driving
whi | e wat ching TV.

10: 54: 37 AM

MR. VEI SER said this legislation is at the vanguard of |aws, and
it is apolitical. "What sane individual nmakes the argunent that
they should have the right to watch a video while driving? Wat
corporate interest argues agai nst severe penalties for violating

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 5, 2005



the inherent safety features they design into their own
products?" he asked. He added, "You have the power to prevent
for others the kind of upheaval our famly has suffered in the
wake of an acquittal of all charges against this particular
def endant . "

10: 55: 06 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he doesn't think anyone on the commttee
opposes the bill; they just want to craft it solidly so that
there are no uni ntended consequences.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Wiser if he is aware of any
| egi sl ation that addresses this issue anywhere.

10: 56: 59 AM

MR WEISER said there is legislation "w thout teeth." I n
California it is patently illegal to drive with full notion
video visible, but the fines are only about $75, he said. There
is legislative effort in South Florida, Connecticut, and
M chigan, he said, and he appreciates the attenpts of the
committee to bulletproof the bill. He said that Al aska has the

opportunity to set a trend.

11: 00: 00 AM

DEBORAH JILLY, Acting Chief, Section of Comunity Health and
Emer gency Medi cal Servi ces, Division of Public Heal t h,
Department of Health and Social Services, said the intent of HB
12 is to prevent notor vehicle accidents and pedestrian injuries
by giving |aw enforcenent agents the authority to cite drivers
who are viewing entertainnment devices. She said, "45 to 56
percent of all crashes in the United States involve factors
where the driver of a nmotor vehicle 1is distracted or

inattentive." A study in 2002 found 22 percent of the causes
that led up to a crash were the result of dealing wth
technology in the vehicle, such as cell phones, Dbeepers,
navi gati on devices, Internet, email, radios, and nusic players.

The National Center for Statistics listed driver inattention as
the primary factor for nearly 7 percent of fatal crashes in

Al aska in 2003. She said vehicle manufacturers are inproving
technology to mnimze distractions to drivers fromin-car video
systens, but there is still a need to inprove the safety

t echnol ogy.

11: 03: 53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 5, 2005



M5. JILLY said consuners can purchase and install devices
t hensel ves and bypass safety recommendati ons. She said it is
possible to use a laptop conputer to watch a novie or rig a
vehicle's map display to play novies.

11: 05: 46 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the purpose of the bill is only for video
signals, because the use of laptops by the driver does not seem
to be included.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it did not, and he woul d consi der
a friendly anendnent whi ch does include | aptops.

11: 07:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if it would it be a double offense to
install the device and then get in accident while watching it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answer ed yes.

11: 07: 58 AM

BONNI E GODFRED, Anchorage, said she followed a driver in
Anchorage who was the sole occupant of a vehicle, and the driver
was watching a novie while driving 60 mles per hour. A dealer
who installs videos in vehicles told Ms. Godfred that Alaska is
one of the few states that does not require a switch that turns
off such a screen while the vehicle is in notion. She "whol e-
heartedl y" supports HB 12.

11:10: 40 AM

JANNA STEWART, Crimnal Justice Planner, Departnment of Public
Saf ety, Anchorage, said the departnent submtted a fiscal note
suggesting changes in the way the four different |evels of

of fenses would be broken out. The bill is drafted the way
nunerous statutes are, she said, and it can cause problens when
putting crimnal history records together; however, t he
departnment is not prepared to suggest a wholesale redrafting of
nunmerous other crimnal statutes, so it wll wthdrawmn its
request. She said the problem is only a technical one. The
departnment does not have a problem with the substance of the
bill and does not want to hold it up.

11:11:40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 5, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cl arified that Ms. Stewart referred to
a fiscal note prepared by the Departnment of Public Safety in

February. He said he had extensive conversations wth M.
Stewart, and her concern was related to the offenses described
on page 2, lines 18-25, which technically should be in separate
sections. To do so would be a better fit with the Uniform

Ofense Citation Table, but the Departnent of Law pointed out
that there are a nunber of statutes that are witten |ike HB 12,
and the state plans to |look at all the |laws at once.

11:15: 03 AM

M5. STEWART said it nmay be too conplex to fix, and the
departnment will submt a revised fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about a driver watching a novie while
the vehicle is parked with the notor running.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted again that line 6 specifies
"drive".

11:17:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that the title uses the term
"operating" instead of "driving". He suggests adding wording to
di sall ow a device from being viewable, since it may be difficult
to prove a device was bei ng wat ched.

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

11: 19: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [npbved to adopt Conceptual] Anendnent
1, as follows:

Page 1, line 4:

Del ete "Operation of"
I nsert "Driving"

11:19: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ected and asked about a driver who was
stopped at a traffic light.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that woul d be consi dered driving.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 5, 2005



11:20: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that when the vehicle is in gear, a
person is driving, but when the vehicle is in park, a person is
not driving.

CHAI R SEATON said this definition should be clarified.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed w th Representative Gardner.

11: 21: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO renoved his objection to Conceptual
Amendnent 1.

CHAI R SEATON announced that, there being no further objections,
Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

11: 23: 19 AM

CHAI R SEATON suggested discussing the use of conputers while
driving, which would not be prevented under the current bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said the term conputer is used for many
things, and he added that a person can use a conputer as a
[ G obal Positioning System (GPS)].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pr oposed addi ng conputers on |ine 6.

11: 24: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said there are conputers operating many
parts of cars, so the commttee needs to be careful in crafting
the | anguage to include just entertai nment devices.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested the |anguage should not nention
conput ers because sone cars have 100 within them He said the
issue is screens that are distractions when vi ewed.

11:26:17 AM

CHAI R SEATON questioned whether a video nonitor includes a
| apt op screen, and suggested including a | aptop computer.

11: 27: 02 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 5, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the |anguage should sinply tal k about
the distraction of a device that can be vi ewed.

CHAI R SEATON said he agrees, but using exanples will help the
courts and the general public.

11: 28: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER [ noved to adopt] Amendnent 2, which read:

Page 1, line 9:

Bet ween "applications” and "."

Insert ", which would visually distract the driver,
but excluding those necessary for safe operation of
t he vehicle”

11:30: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved an anendnment to Amendnent 2, to renpve
the word "safe".

REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER said she had no problem with
Representative Lynn's suggested anendnent to Amendnent 2.

The conmittee took an at-ease from11:31 p.m to 11:33 p. m

11: 33: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN wi t hdrew hi s anendnent to Anendment 2.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
whi ch woul d change Anendnent 2 to read: ", which would visually
distract the driver, but excluding those used in the operation
of the vehicle". He explained that a person could have a GPS
that is not necessary, but is used in operating the vehicle.

CHAI R SEATON announced that Conceptual Amendnent 2 to Amendnent
2 was adopted wi t hout objection.

11: 35: 06 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Anendnent 2, as
anended. There being none, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Representative Gatto if he wanted

to "insert sonewhere in there, devices that are visible or
i ntended to be viewed."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 5, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO sai d yes.

11: 36: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said her the intent of her anmendnent had
been to i nclude such devi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said there are many things that could be

listed as distractions to a driver. Many of them are all owed
like tuning the radio and picking up lipstick, and the commttee
can't include them all. He indicated a preference for |anguage

related to things that can be viewed, rather than a Ilist of
di stracti ons.

CHAI R SEATON clarified that the discussion is a conceptual one
to decide whether or not to include distractions other than
t el evi si on broadcast or video signals.

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said Representative Gatto is talking
about devices and he suggested inserting "Devices that are
visible or intended to be viewed by the driver” in front of the
word "which".

11:41: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that that Ilanguage is in the
previ ous part of the sentence.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said |aptops don't fall into the
broadcast category, so it should be added before Amendnent 2.

CHAIR SEATON remnded the commttee that this is all one
sent ence.

11:44:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the laptop is the signal, but also
peopl e m ght be watching what they are typing.

REPRESENTATI VE Gruenberg noved Conceptual Amendnent 3, as
fol | ows:

On page 1, line 9:

Between "applications” and [the adopted Anendnent 2,
as anended]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 5, 2005



Insert "devices that are visible or are intended to be
viewed by the driver"

CHAI R SEATON interjected that the sentence is getting rather
long. He said he is trying to figure out where the commttee is
going with all this |anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said a person could be typing on a
| aptop and watching his/her fingers. He reiterated that
[ Conceptual] Anmendnent 3 would include, "devices that are
visible or are intended to be viewed by the driver"”.

CHAI R SEATON objected to Anendnent 3. He clarified Conceptua
Anmendnent 3.

11:46: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if anyone had any objection. [He treated his
own objection as being wthdrawn.] He asked if there was any
further objection to Conceptual Amendnent 3. There being none,
Conceptual Anmendnent 3 was adopt ed.

11:48: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he believes that wll cover the
t el ephone screen.

CHAIR SEATON said he would like to get the intent of the
sponsors regarding cell phones. He said, "This is talking about
the device; it's not tal king about what you do with the device.
Because it doesn't say the driver looks at it, it says that the
device is intended to be viewed."

11: 49: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the word in line 6 is
"wat ching”, and the only time a person will be penalized is if
he or she is watching the screen. He asked if anyone still has

a problemw th the word "wat chi ng”.

11:51: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he does, unless it says "capable of
wat chi ng".

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 5, 2005



CHAIR SEATON said a cell phone is capable of being watched;
users nmay not be watching the video on that cell phone, but they
may be talking on it.

11:52:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that Representative Seaton is
saying cell phones w thout screens would be okay, while others
woul d be disqualified.

11:53: 06 AM

CHAIR SEATON said a nounted device needs to have a |ocking
mechanism while the car is being driven, but there are also
portabl e devi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that is the crux of the issue.

11:55: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he doesn't know "where that | eaves us."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there is no definition of "watch"
in Black's Law Dictionary. Wbster's defines watch as "to | ook
at or observe attentively and usually continuously,” which is
not what we want.

11:56: 54 AM

CHAI R SEATON said HB 12 will not be noved today anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG read a thesaurus that |I|ists the
synonyns for watch

11:58: 25 AM

CHAI R SEATON said drafters can figure out the wrds to use, and
then he turned to the question of installed systens versus non-
install ed systens. The bill doesn't address portable battery-
power ed players, he said.

11:59: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said "My intent ... is not to
crimnalize, in this section, a person who just lays his |aptop
on the seat. Here, we're talking about the people who do

permanent installations.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 5, 2005



CHAIR SEATON asked if Representative Guenberg thought the
| apt op concern is covered in the other section.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered, "Right."
CHAI R SEATON noved Conceptual Anendnent 4, as foll ows:
Page 1, line 7:

After "nmonitor,"
I nsert "Il aptop-type conputer,”

12:01: 47 PM
CHAI R SEATON announced that Conceptual Amendnent 4 was adopted,
but the sponsors would be welcone to change "lap-top" to
"portable".
12: 02: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG, in response to feedback from
Representative Gatto and Chair Seaton, confirmed that both
"wat ching” and "intermttently watching" should be included.

12: 04: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated concern that sone attorney could
argue that a person has to occasionally |look at his/her gas
gauge, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that this mght not be the easiest
|l aw to enforce. He added that the point [of concern] is that
soneone may be watching a device to the extent of being
distracted from driving, and he suggested |anguage to address
t hat .

12: 05: 09 PM

CHAI R SEATON asked the sponsors to work out the wording outside
of comm ttee.

[HB 12 was heard and hel d.]

HB 114- TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES

12: 05: 52 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 5, 2005



CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 114, "An Act relating to the retaining of certain
privileges of a parent in a relinquishment and term nation of a
par ent and child relationship pr oceedi ng; relating to
eligibility for permanent fund dividends for certain children in
the custody of the state; relating to child in need of aid
proceedi ngs and juvenile delinquency proceedings; and providing
for an effective date.”

CHAI R SEATON said there is a report of the subcommttee on HB
114. The subconmttee felt everything was fine, he said, except

for Sections 1 and 5, which are still being worked on. The
subconmttee will be working on it next week.
#scr 2

SCR 2- ROTARY | NTERNATI ONAL YEAR 2005

DRAFT

CHAI R SEATON announced that the final order of business was
SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTION NO. 2, Proclaimng 2005 as Rotary
| nt ernati onal Year.

CHAIR SEATON said if no one has a problem he wll get
signatures, but if anyone opposes waiving it, "that's your right
to do so."

12: 07: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he already signed it.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she has not read SCR 2, but she has
no objections "off the cuff.”

CHAI R SEATON read SCR 2 to Representative Gardner

12: 08: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d she had no problemw th SCR 2.
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
12: 08: 23 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 5, 2005



